
MY FOODIE BOX LTD 
ABN 62 622 021 265 

 
APPENDIX 4E 
For the year ended 30 June 2025 

 

1 

 
1. DETAILS OF REPORTING PERIOD 

Name of Entity My Foodie Box Limited 

ABN 62 622 021 265 

Reporting Period 30 June 2025 

Previous Corresponding Period 30 June 2024 

 
2. RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET 

Key information 
12 months ended 

30 June 2025 
12 months ended  

30 June 2024 
Increase/ 

(decrease) % 
Amount 
change $ 

Revenue from ordinary activities - 1,990,584 (100%) (1,990,584) 
(Loss)/profit from ordinary activities 
after tax attributable to members 

(240,933) 1,394,799 (117%) (1,635,732) 

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable 
to members  

(240,933) 1,394,799 (117%) (1,635,732) 

3. NET TANGIBLE ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

 Reporting 
period 
Cents 

Previous 
period 
Cents 

Net tangible assets/(liabilities) per share (0.74) (0.57) 

 
4. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Refer to attached financial statements. 
 
5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Refer to attached financial statements. 
 
6. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Refer to attached financial statements. 
 
7. STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS/CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Refer to attached financial statements. 
 

8. DIVIDENDS/DISTRIBUTIONS 

No dividends declared in current or prior year. 
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9. DETAILS OF DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLANS 

N/A 
 
10. DETAILS OF ENTITIES OVER WHICH CONTROL HAS BEEN GAINED OR LOST DURING THE PERIOD 

N/A 
 

11. DETAILS OF ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES 

As consideration for the disposal of the Company’s My foodie Box Business to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB) on 10 May 
2024, the Company was issued a 40% equity holding in MFB.  The 40% equity holding is accounted for as an 
investment in associate at 30 June 2024. 
 
Following the completion of capital raises by MFB in November and December 2024 the Company’s interest was 
diluted to 9.09% at 30 June 2025, resulting in the 9.09% investment in MFB being accounted for as a financial asset 
at fair value through profit or loss at 30 June 2025. 
 

12. ANY OTHER SIGNIFICANT INFORMATION NEEDED BY AN INVESTOR TO MAKE AN INFORMED ASSESSMENT OF 
THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION 

Refer to attached annual financial report. 
 
13. FOREIGN ENTITIES 

N/A 
 
14. COMMENTARY ON RESULTS FOR PERIOD AND EXPLANATORY INFORMATION 

Refer to attached annual financial report. 
 
15. AUDIT QUALIFICATION OR REVIEW 

This report is based on financial statements which have been audited.  The audit report contains a material 
uncertainty in relation to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  Refer to Note 1 to the Annual 
Financial Report for further information.  

 
 
 
 
 
Francis De Souza 
Non Executive Chairman 
Perth  
 
22 August 2025 
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General information 
  
My Foodie Box Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The financial statements 
are presented in Australian dollars, which is My Foodie Box Ltd's functional and presentation currency. Its registered office and principal 
place of business are: 
  
Registered office  Principal place of business 
   
Level 11, 12-14 The Esplanade   9 Foundry Street 
Perth WA 6000  Maylands WA 6051 
Ph: +61 8 6363 9222  Ph: +61 8 6363 9222 
   
  
A description of the nature of the Company's operations and its principal activities are included in the Directors' report, which is not 
part of the financial statements. 
  
The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of Directors, on 22 August 2025. The Directors have 
the power to amend and reissue the financial statements. 
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Directors  Francis De Souza 
  Guy Perkins  
  Bryan Hughes 
  
 
Company secretary  Kyla Garic 
  
Registered office  Level 11, 12-14 The Esplanade 
  Perth WA 6000 
  Ph: +61 8 6363 9222 
  
Principal place of business  9 Foundry Street 
  Maylands WA 6051 
  Ph: +61 8 6363 9222 
  
Auditor  RSM Australia Partners 
  Level 32, Exchange Tower 
  2 The Esplanade 
  Perth WA 6000 
  
Stock exchange listing  My Foodie Box Limited’s shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX code: 

MBX) 
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The Directors of My Foodie Box Limited (Company) present their report, together with the financial statements for the full year ended 
30 June 2025. 
  
Directors 
The names of the Directors in office at any time during the full year and to the date of this report are: 
Name Position  Appointment Date Resignation Date 
Francis De Souza Non-Executive Chairman from 10 May 2024 – present; 

Non-Executive Director from 30 November 2023 – 10 May 2024 
30 November 2023 - 

Guy Perkins Non-Executive Director 8 September 2021 - 
Bryan Hughes Non-Executive Director from 10 May 2024 – present;  

Executive Chairman from 2 October 2017 – 10 May 2024 
2 October 2017 - 

 
Company Secretary 
The following person held the position of Company Secretary during and to the date of this report:  
Name Position  Appointed  
Kyla Garic  Company Secretary  8 September 2021 
 
Principal activity, significant changes in the state of affairs and likely developments and expected results of operations 
The Company was founded as a food technology and logistics business. The principal activity of the Company until 10 May 2024 was the 
conduct of the My Foodie Box business (Business), comprising the development, preparation, and delivery of meal kits to Western 
Australian households. 
 
On 10 May 2024 the Company completed the sale of the Business to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB). 
 
The Business was the Company’s primary undertaking.  Since divestment of the Business the Company has been working on potential 
acquisition opportunities to restore shareholder value. 
 
At the date of this report the Company is in advanced discussions in relation to a transaction which will facilitate the reinstatement of 
the Company to Official Quotation on ASX (Re-Compliance Transaction).  The transaction will require the Company to re-comply with 
Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules.  The Company notes that at this stage no formal agreements have been entered into and there 
is no guarantee the transaction will proceed. 
 
Dividends 
There were no dividends paid, recommended, or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
 
Review of operations 
In October 2024 the Company entered into a lead manager mandate with Kaai Pty Ltd to raise $300,000 through loans with various 
lenders (October Loans).  The first advance is to be provided immediately with the Company having the election to draw down on the 
balance of $150,000 by giving 10 business days’ notice to the lender.  The second advance is conditional on the lender being satisfied 
with the financial position of the Company at the time of drawdown. 
 
Key terms of the October Loans are as follows: 
 

• Interest: 10% per annum; 
• Term: the Loans (plus interest) shall be repaid in cash on the earlier of: (a) 3 years from drawdown; and (b) the date of 

completion of a Re-Compliance Transaction; 
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• Options: as part consideration for providing the Loans, subject to shareholder approval, the Company will issue the lenders 1 

option for every 2 cents loaned, each option with an exercise price equal to a 50% premium to the capital raising to be 
undertaken in connection with the Re-Compliance Transaction expiring 3 years from issue; and 

• Unsecured: the Loans are unsecured. 
 
$80,000 of the October Loans was received during the year with the balance expected over the coming months. 
 
During the year an additional $63,005 has been drawn under various loan agreements.  Of the $63,5005 all is unsecured and bears 
interest at 10% per annum.  $27,500 is repayable on demand.  The balance of $35,505 is payable in cash on the earlier of: (a) 3 years 
from drawdown; and (b) the date of completion of a Re-Compliance Transaction.  $25,000 of the $35,505 was provided by director Guy 
Perkins. 
 
In December 2024, to facilitate a private raising being undertaken by MFB, MBX agreed to subordinate its security on the $400K MFB 
debt to the lenders under the current MFB debt raising (up to a maximum of $96,000) and to defer repayment of the Vendor Financing 
such that all outstanding repayment amounts as at March 2025 will be paid in March 2025 and normal repayment terms will commence 
from that date.  In consideration, subject to shareholder approval, MFB will grant the Company a 12 month option to convert part of 
its debt into MFB shares. Repayment did not commence as planned in March however in May 2025 MFB agreed to commence payments 
of $300 payment per week from 21 May 2025, with $600 received as at 30 June 2025, and annual report sign off. 
 
Operating and financial review 
The net loss after tax for the year amounted to $240,933 (30 June 2024: net profit of $1,394,799).  In the prior year, the $1,394,799 net 
profit was comprised of a $744,185 loss from continuing operations and a profit of $2,138,984 from discontinued operations.  
 

 
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
As noted above, the Company is in advanced discussions regarding a Re-Compliance Transaction which would facilitate the 
reinstatement of the Company to Official Quotation on ASX.  The Company notes that at this stage no formal agreements have been 
entered into and there is no guarantee the transaction will proceed. 
 
In August 2025 the maturity date of the Company’s 45,000, $1 face value promissory notes was extended to 31 January 2026. See note 
15 for further details. 
 
In August 2025 an additional $60,000 has been drawn under various loan agreements from unrelated parties pursuant to the October 
2024 lead manager mandate with Kaai Pty Ltd to raise $300,000 through loans with various lenders (October Loans).  The $60,000 is 
unsecured and bears interest at 10% per annum, repayable in cash on the earlier of: (a) 3 years from drawdown; and (b) the date of 
completion of a Re-Compliance Transaction. As part consideration for providing the Loans, subject to shareholder approval, the 
Company will issue the lenders 1 option for every 2 cents loaned, each option with an exercise price equal to a 50% premium to the 
capital raising to be undertaken in connection with the Re-Compliance Transaction expiring 3 years from issue. 
 
The Company is currently undertaking a promissory note raising to raise funds for costs of the Re-Compliance Transaction and for 
working capital.  In August 2025, $55,000 was raised from unrelated parties.  Subject to shareholder approval, these promissory notes 
will automatically convert to equity at 2 cents per share, with lenders to also receive 1 attaching option for each share issued, each with 
an exercise price of 3c expiring 3 years from issue. 
 
Save as noted above, there are no other matters or circumstance that have arisen since 30 June 2025 that has significantly affected, or 
may significantly affect the Company’s operations, the results of those operations, or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial 
years.  
 
Environmental regulation 
The Company aims to comply with the identified regulatory requirements in each jurisdiction in which it operates. There have been no 
known material breaches of the environmental regulations.  
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Business risk disclosure 
Material business risks that could affect future operational and financial growth of the Group are as follows: 
 
General Economic Conditions 
The Company’s future operational and financial plans may be influenced by a variety of general economic and business conditions 
including the level of inflation, interest rates and government fiscal, monetary and regulatory policies. Prolonged deterioration in 
general economic conditions may impact the Company’s future operating plans and financial performance. 
 
Listing Risk 
The Australian Securities Exchange may de-list the Company should the Company fail to undertake an acquisition and complete the re-
listing process. 
 
Financial Risk 
The Company is reliant on its continued ability to raise funds to finance its operations.  For further details refer to the Going Concern 
section of Note 1 to the financial statements. 
 
 
Information on Directors 
Name:  Francis De Souza 
Title:  Non-Executive Chairman 
Qualifications:  BCom 
Experience and expertise:  Mr De Souza’s career spans two decades in capital markets and investment banking. He has 

significant financial industry experience, as well as expertise in the fields of resources and 
technology.  His previous ASX directorships were instrumental in asset identification and 
acquisition coupled with recapitalisation of ASX listed companies.  More recently he has co-
founded Appstablishment Software Group Ltd, a start-up venture that was later acquired by 
ASX-listed Spenda Limited (ASX: SPX). 

Other current directorships:  Nil 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Nil 
Interests in shares:  Nil 
Interests in options:  Nil 
   
   
Name:  Guy Perkins 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Qualifications:  BEng(Civil) 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Perkins has over 25 years’ experience in the global Information Technologies (IT) industry 

including in several key management positions. Originally a Civil Engineer, Mr Perkins pivoted 
towards the IT Industry and developed significant extensive business know-how and IT 
industry knowledge. He has worked with global innovative leaders in IT companies such as ESRI 
(US), MapInfo (NYSE: PBI), ER Mapper (Australia), Hexagon, NearMap and 1Spatial (AIM: SPA). 
He was the COO of NearMap in its formative years and later Co-Founder of Spookfish (ASX: 
SFI). He was also the Managing Director and CEO of Connexion Telematics (ASX: CXZ). 

Other current directorships:  Nil 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Schrole Group Limited, Non-Executive Director (resigned October 2024) 
Interests in shares:  1,302,457 Ordinary shares 
Interests in options:  1,500,000 Options 
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Name:  Bryan Hughes 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Qualifications:  BCom UWA, Chartered Accountant 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Hughes is a Chartered Accountant who specialises in corporate advisory, corporate finance 

and corporate turnarounds. Bryan has over 30 years’ corporate experience and has facilitated 
and overseen many projects to significant financial success. Bryan has significant ASX 
experience and was a key player behind the listing of Western Areas and facilitated the 
restructure and recapitalisation of Sirius Resources Limited which was subsequently acquired 
by IGO Limited (ASX: IGO). 

Other current directorships:  Moab Minerals Limited, Non Executive Chairman (ASX: MOM) 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Nil  
Interests in shares:  305,799 Ordinary Shares 
Interests in options:  Nil 

 

 
 
Company secretary 
Name: Kyla Garic 
Qualifications: B Com, MAcc, CA, FGIA, FGIS 
Experience: Ms Garic is a Chartered Accountant and Director of Onyx Corporate. Onyx Corporate provides 

financial reporting, accounting, company secretarial and other services primarily to ASX listed 
companies. Ms Garic acts as Company Secretary for a number of ASX listed companies. 

 
Meetings of Directors 
The number of formal meetings of Directors held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each Director was as follows: 
 

 DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS 
 Number Eligible to Attend Number Attended 
Francis De Souza - - 
Guy Perkins  - - 
Bryan Hughes - - 

 

The Directors believe the Company is not currently of a size nor are its affairs of such complexity as to warrant the establishment of 
separate committees. Accordingly, all matters are considered by the full Board of Directors, in accordance with committee charters. 
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Remuneration report (audited) 
This remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2025 outlines the remuneration arrangements of the Company in accordance with 
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), as amended (Act) and its regulations. This information has been audited as 
required by section 308(3C) of the Act. 
 
Key management personnel (KMP) have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the 
Company. KMP comprises of the Directors of the Company. 
  
The remuneration report is presented under the following headings: 
●  Executive Remuneration arrangements  
●  Non-executive Director fee arrangements  
●  Details of remuneration 
●  Share-based compensation 
●  Additional information 
●  Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 

 

 
Executive remuneration arrangements 
From the date of the disposal of the My Foodie Box Business in May 2024 until the date of this report the Company has had no executives 
and has not had any executive remuneration arrangements in place. 
 
Employee Share Option Plan 
The Company has established and maintains the My Foodie Box Limited Employee Securities Incentive Plan (Plan) to provide ongoing 
incentives to Eligible Participants of the Company. Eligible Participants means a person that: 
• is an ‘eligible participant’ (as that term is defined in ASIC Class order 14/1000) in relation to the Company or an Associated Body 

Corporate; and/or; 
• has been determined by the Board to be eligible to participate in the plan from time to time. 

 
The purpose of the Plan is to assist in the reward and motivation of Eligible Participants and link the reward of Eligible Participants to 
shareholder value creation and it is designed to align the interest of Eligible Participants more closely to the interests of shareholders 
by providing an opportunity for Eligible Participants to receive an equity interest in the Company in the form of securities. There were 
no Options issued to key management personnel or their related parties under the Plan during the 2025 or 2024 financial years.   

Voting and comments made at the company's 2024 Annual General Meeting ('AGM') 
At the date of this report the Company has not held an Annual General Meeting in respect of the 2024 financial year.  
 
The Company’s most recent Annual General Meeting was the 2023 Annual General Meeting held 30 November 2023.  At the 2023 AGM, 
99.8% of the votes received supported the adoption of the remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2023.  
 
The Company did not receive any specific feedback regarding its remuneration practices at or since the 2023 AGM. 
 
Use of remuneration consultants 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2025 the Company did not engage remuneration consultants. 
  

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



MY FOODIE BOX LTD 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
30 JUNE 2025 
 

Annual Financial Report – 30 June 2025 | 8 
 

Remuneration report (audited) (continued) 
 
Non-executive Director fee arrangements 
The Board policy is to remunerate non-executive Directors at a level to comparable companies for time, commitment, and 
responsibilities. Directors’ fees cover all main Board activities, and non-executive Directors may receive additional remuneration for 
other services (including being a member of any separate Board committee) provided to the Company. The Board has not established 
retirement or redundancy schemes in relation to non-executive Directors.  
 
All non-executive Directors enter into a service agreement with the Company in the form of a Letter of Appointment. The letter 
summarises the board policies and terms, including remuneration, relevant to the office of Director. 
 
The maximum aggregate amount of fees that can be paid to non-executive Directors is presently limited to an aggregate of $500,000 
per annum and any change is subject to approval by shareholders at the General Meeting.  
 
Fees for non-executive Directors are not linked to the performance of the Company, however, to align Directors’ interests with 
shareholder interests, the Directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Company. Non-executive Directors may also receive equity-
based compensation in the form of shares or options. 
 
Details of remuneration 
Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of the Company for its 2025 and 2024 financial years are set out in the 
following tables.  
 
The key management personnel of the Company consisted of the Directors of the Company: 
 
●  Francis De Souza – Non-Executive Chairman 
●  Guy Perkins – Non-Executive Director  
●  Bryan Hughes – Non-Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

Short-term benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

 
Long-term 
benefits 

 

Share-based payments  

 
 

Cash salary 
 

Cash 
 

Non- 
 

Super- 
 

Long service 
 Equity-

settled 
 Equity-

settled 
 

 
  and fees  bonus  monetary  annuation  leave  shares  options  Total 
2025  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
Non-Executive 
Directors: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Francis De Souza(i)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Guy Perkins(ii)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Bryan Hughes(ii)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 

 
(i) Francis De Souza has waived his entitlement to director fees with effect from his appointment date of 30 November 2023. 
(ii) Mr Perkins and Mr Hughes have waived their entitlement to director fees with effect from 11 May 2024. 
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Remuneration report (audited) (continued) 
 
Details of remuneration (continued) 
 
 

 

 

Short-term benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

 
Long-term 
benefits 

 

Share-based payments  

 
 

Cash salary 
 

Cash 
 

Non- 
 

Super- 
 

Long service 
 Equity-

settled 
 Equity-

settled 
 

 
  and fees  bonus  monetary  annuation  leave  shares  options  Total 
2024  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
Non-Executive 
Directors: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Francis De Souza(i)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Guy Perkins(ii)  36,016  -  -  3,962  -  -  5,350  45,328 
Bryan Hughes(iii)  60,215  -  -  6,624  -  -  (33,040)  33,799 
                 
Executive Director:                 
Mai Hughes  197,231  -  -  21,695  -  -  (33,040)  185,886 
  293,462  -  -  32,281  -  -  (60,730)  265,013 

 

 
(i) Francis De Souza has waived his entitlement to director fees with effect from his appointment date of 30 November 2023. 
(ii) Amounts recorded for Guy Perkins are in relation to non-executive director services provided to the Company during the period 

1 July 2023 – 10 May 2024.  Mr Perkins has waived his entitlement to director fees with effect from 11 May 2024. 
(iii) Amounts recorded for Bryan Hughes are in relation to executive director services provided to the Company during the period 1 

July 2023 – 10 May 2024.  Mr Hughes has waived his entitlement to director fees with effect from 11 May 2024. 
 
The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows: 
  
  Fixed remuneration At risk - STI At risk - LTI 
Name  2025  2024  2025  2024  2025  2024 
             
Non-Executive Directors:             
Francis De Souza  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Guy Perkins  -  88%  -  -  -  12% 
Bryan Hughes  -  198%  -  -  -  (98%) 
  
Share-based compensation 
Issue of shares 
There were no shares issued as compensation during the 2025 or 2024 financial years. 
 
Options 
There were no options issued or granted to Key Management Personnel as compensation during the 2025 or 2024 financial years.   
 
There were no options issued in prior financial years impacting 30 June 2025 Key Management Personnel remuneration. 
 
There were no options exercised or lapsed in the 2025 financial year impacting 30 June 2025 Key Management Personnel remuneration. 
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Remuneration report (audited) (continued) 
 
Additional information 
The earnings of the Company for the five years to 30 June 2025 are summarised below: 
  
  2025  2024  2023  2022  2021 
  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
(Loss)/profit after income tax  (240,933)  1,394,799  (4,181,974)  (3,472,640)  (601,115) 
  
 
The factors that are considered to affect total shareholders return ('TSR') are summarised below: 
  
  2025  2024  2023  2022  2021 
           
Share price at financial year end ($)  0.004(i)  0.004(i)  0.005  0.096  (ii) 
Total dividends declared (cents per share)  -  -  -  -  - 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share)  (0.17)  0.86  (6.16)  (7.17)  (ii) 

 
(i) The Company’s shares were suspended from trading on the Australian Securities Exchange on 2 October 2023. 
(ii) The Company commenced trading on the Australian Securities Exchange on 5 January 2022. 

 
Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
 
Shareholding 
The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director and other members of key management personnel 
of the Company, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at   Received         Balance Balance at  
  the start of   as part of      Disposals/   at the end of  
  the year  remuneration  Additions  other  resignation the year 
Ordinary shares            
Francis De Souza  -  -  -  -  - - 
Guy Perkins  1,302,457  -  -  -  - 1,302,457 
Bryan Hughes  305,799  -  -  -  - 305,799 
  1,608,256  -  -  -   1,608,256 
 
Option holding 
The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director and other members of key 
management personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
 
  Balance at      Expired/  Balance at  
  the start of      forfeited/  the end of  
  the year Granted Exercised other the year 
Options over ordinary shares       
Francis De Souza  - - - - - 
Guy Perkins  2,500,000 - - (1,000,000) 1,500,000 
Bryan Hughes  - - - - - 
  2,500,000 - - (1,000,000) 1,500,000 
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Remuneration report (audited) (continued) 
Other transactions with key management personnel & their related parties 

Investment in MFB (WA) Pty Ltd 
MFB (WA) Pty Ltd is a related party of the Company through director Bryan Hughes. 
 
At 30 June 2024 the Company held 40% of the issued capital of MFB. Following the completion of capital raises by MFB in November 
and December 2024 the Company’s interest was diluted to 9.09% at 30 June 2025.  
  
During the 2025 financial year the Company advanced MFB a net amount of $2,544. 
 
The Company recognised interest income on loans receivable from MFB of $37,495 at 30 June 2025. 
 
The Company recognised an impairment loss of $48,312 in respect of MFB at 30 June 2025. 
 
In December 2024, to facilitate a private raising being undertaken by MFB, MBX agreed to subordinate its security on the $400K MFB 
debt to the lenders under the current MFB debt raising (up to a maximum of $96,000) and to defer repayment of the Vendor Financing 
such that all outstanding repayment amounts as at March 2025 will be paid in March 2025 and normal repayment terms will commence 
from that date.  In consideration, subject to shareholder approval, MFB will grant the Company a 12 month option to convert part of 
its debt into MFB shares. Repayment did not commence as planned in March however in May 2025 MFB agreed to commence payments 
of $300 per week from 21 May 2025, with $600 received as at 30 June 2025 and annual report sign off. 
 
Borrowings 
Guy Perkins provided loan funding to the Company of $25,000 during the 2025 financial year.  The $25,000 is unsecured, repayable at 
the earliest of the date the Company is reinstated to trading on ASX following completion of a transaction under any RTO Agreement 
or 16 July 2027, and accrues interest at 10% per annum.  Accrued interest of $2,390 is recorded at 30 June 2025. See note 14 for further 
details.  
 
Other liabilities – promissory notes 
At 30 June 2025 the Company has 25,000 promissory notes on issue with a principal amount of $25,000 owed to Guy Perkins.  The 
accounting value of the 25,000 promissory notes is $5,027 at 30 June 2025. Refer note 15 for details of promissory note terms and 
conditions. 
 
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited. 
  
Shares under option 
Unissued ordinary shares of My Foodie Box Ltd under option at the date of this report are as follows: 
  

  Exercise Number 
Grant date Expiry date price under option 
11/11/2021 7/01/2027 30c 2,000,000 
24/12/2021 7/01/2026 25c 300,000 
24/12/2021 7/01/2027 30c 300,000 
31/12/2021 30/12/2025 30c 17,999,980 
17/02/2023 17/02/2026 2.5c 10,000,000 
12/07/2023 12/07/2026 0.0095c 100,368,752 

   130,968,732 
 

 
No person entitled to exercise the options had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of the Company 
or of any other body corporate. 
  
Shares issued on the exercise of options 
No ordinary shares of My Foodie Box Ltd were issued during the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to the date of this report on the 
exercise of options granted.  
  

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



MY FOODIE BOX LTD 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
30 JUNE 2025 
 

  

Annual Financial Report – 30 June 2025 |12 
 
 

Indemnity and insurance of officers 
The Company has entered into a deed of indemnity, insurance and access with each of its Directors.  Under these deeds, the Company 
will agree to indemnify each officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act against any liability arising as a result of the officer 
acting as an officer of the Company. The Company will also be required to maintain insurance policies for the benefit of the relevant 
officer and allow the officers to inspect board papers in certain circumstances. 
 
Indemnity and insurance of auditor 
The Company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the Company or 
any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor. 
  
During the financial year, the Company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the Company or any 
related entity. 
  
Proceedings on behalf of the Company 
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the 
Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the 
Company for all or part of those proceedings. 
  
Non-audit services 
There were no non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor.  
 
In the event that non-audit services are provided by RSM Australia Partners, the Board has established certain procedures to ensure 
that the provision of non-audit services are compatible with, and do not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001.  These procedures include: 
 
●  non-audit services will be subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and will be reviewed by the 

Board to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and 
●  ensuring non-audit services do not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision 

making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards. 
  
Officers of the Company who are former partners of RSM Australia Partners 
There are no officers of the Company who are former partners of RSM Australia Partners. 
 
Auditor's independence declaration 
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out immediately 
after this Directors' report. 
  
Auditor 
RSM Australia Partners continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
On behalf of the Directors 
  
  
  
  
___________________________ 
Francis De Souza 
Non-Executive Chairman 
  
22 August 2025 
Perth 
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RSM Australia Partners is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM.  RSM is the trading name used by the 
members of the RSM network.  Each member of the RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm 
which practices in its own right.  The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction. 
RSM Australia Partners ABN 36 965 185 036 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
 
 

 

RSM Australia Partners 
 

Level 32 Exchange Tower, 2 The Esplanade Perth WA 6000 
GPO Box R1253 Perth WA 6844 

 
T +61 (0) 8 9261 9100 

 
www.rsm.com.au 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
 
As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of My Foodie Box Limited for the year ended 30 June 2025, I 
declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 
 
(i) The auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and 
 
(ii) Any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 RSM AUSTRALIA  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Perth, WA AIK KONG TING 
Dated:  22 August 2025 Partner 
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  Note  2025  2024 
    $  $ 
       
Other income  4  51,735  6,574 
       
Expenses       
Employee expense  5  -  (39,978) 
Finance expense  5  (86,291)  (73,818) 
Impairment expense  5  (48,312)  (386,750) 
General and administration expense  5  (158,065)  (250,213) 
Loss before income tax expense from continuing operations    (240,933)  (744,185) 
Income tax expense  7  -  - 
Loss after income tax expense from continuing operations    (240,933)  (744,185) 
Profit after income tax expense from discontinued operations  6  -  2,138,984 
(Loss)/profit after income tax expense for the year    (240,933)  1,394,799 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax    -  - 
Total comprehensive (loss) /income for the year, net of tax    (240,933)  1,394,799 
       
    Cents  Cents 
Loss per share        
Basic and diluted (loss)/ profit per share from continuing operations (cents)  8  (0.17)  (0.46) 
Basic and diluted (loss)/ profit per share from discontinuing operations (cents)  8  -  1.32  
Basic and diluted (loss)/ profit per share (cents) attributable to the owners of My Foodie 
Box Ltd 

 
8 

 
(0.17) 

 
0.86 

 
The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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  Note  2025  2024 
    $  $ 
Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents  9  6,434  - 
Other assets  11  9,384  26,529 
Total current assets    15,818  26,529 
       
Total assets    15,818  26,529 
       
Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Bank overdraft  9  -  4,919 
Trade and other payables  13  230,435  182,258 
Borrowings  14  67,061  57,043 
Other current liabilities  15  9,049  19,796 
Total current liabilities    306,545  264,016 
       
Non-current liabilities       
Borrowings  14  737,363  549,669 
Total non-current liabilities    737,363  549,669 
       
Total liabilities    1,043,305  813,685 
Net liabilities    (1,028,089)  (787,156) 
       
Equity       
Issued capital  16  5,950,304  5,950,304 
Reserve  17  579,820  708,500 
Accumulated losses    (7,558,213)  (7,445,960) 
Total equity    (1,028,089)  (787,156) 
    

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Total equity  
 

Issued capital 
 

Reserves 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 

  $  $  $  $ 
         
Balance at 1 July 2023  5,971,841  914,391  (8,957,372)  (2,071,140) 
         
Profit after income tax expense for the year   -  -  1,394,799  1,394,799 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  1,394,799  1,394,799 
         
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:         
Issue of shares (note 16)  98,463  -  -  98,463 
Cancellation of shares (note 16)  (120,000)  -  -  (120,000) 
Adjustment to inception date convertible note equity portion  -  27,716  -  27,716 
Convertible note reserve transferred to accumulated losses after 
sale of business (note 17) 

 
- 

 
(116,613) 

 
116,613 

 
- 

Reversal of share based payments (note 17)  -  (116,994)  -  (116,994) 
         
Balance at 30 June 2024  5,950,304  708,500  (7,445,960)  (787,156) 

 
         

Total equity  
 

Issued capital 
 

Reserves 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 

  $  $  $  $ 
         
Balance at 1 July 2024  5,950,304  708,500  (7,445,960)  (787,156) 
         
Loss after income tax expense for the year   -  -  (240,933)  (240,933) 
Total comprehensive loss for the year  -  -  (240,933)  (240,933) 
         
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:         
Expiry of options (note 17)  -  (128,680)  128,680  - 
Balance at 30 June 2025  5,950,304  579,820  (7,558,213)  (1,028,089) 

 
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notesF
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 The above statement of cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

  Notes  2025  2024 
    $  $ 
Cash flows from operating activities       
Receipts from customers     -  2,004,156 
Payments to suppliers and employees    (91,313)  (2,219,269) 
R&D rebate received    -  298,069 
Rental income from sublease    -  32,345 
Interest and other finance costs paid    (3,122)  (29,206) 
Interest received    -  8,134 
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities  24  (94,435)  94,229 
       
Cash flows from investing activities       
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets    -  (80,708) 
Proceeds from sublease deposit    -  15,000 
Cash transferred to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd at Business disposal date (note 6)    -  (89,421) 
Loans advanced to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd    (7,139)  (28,202) 
Loans repaid by MFB (WA) Pty Ltd     4,595  - 
Net cash used in investing activities    (2,544)  (183,331) 
       
Cash flows from financing activities       
Proceeds from borrowings    143,005  560,650 
Repayment of borrowings    (34,673)  (321,271) 
Repayment of lease liabilities    -  (125,960) 
Borrowings transaction costs    -  (32,400) 
Net cash from financing activities    108,332  81,019 
       
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    11,353  (8,083) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year    (4,919)  3,164 
       
Cash and cash equivalents/(bank overdraft) at the end of the financial year  9  6,434  (4,919) 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information 
  
The accounting policies that are material to the Company are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement as at 30 June 2025 
The Company has no controlled entities and therefore is not required by the Australian Accounting Standards to prepare consolidated 
financial statements. As a result section 295(3A)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001 does not apply to the Company. 
 
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The Company has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
  
Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for for-
profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB'). 
  
Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, the revaluation of 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
investment properties, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and derivative financial instruments. 
  
Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to 
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are material to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 2. 
  
Going Concern 
The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business activities and 
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 
 
As disclosed in the financial statements, the Company incurred a net loss from continuing operations of $240,933 for the year ended 
30 June 2025. At 30 June 2025 the Company has net current liabilities and net liabilities of $290,727 and $1,028,089 respectively. 
 
The Directors have approved a detailed cashflow forecast which indicates the Company will be required to raise additional funds for 
working capital.  The cashflow forecast also indicates the continued support of the Company’s creditors. The ability of the Company to 
continue as a going concern is dependent on the ongoing support of its creditors and securing additional funding as may be required 
through borrowings, capital raise or other means. 
 
This condition indicates a material uncertainty that may cast a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern 
and, therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
The Directors believe that there are reasonable grounds that the Company will continue as a going concern and that it is appropriate 
to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements after consideration of the following factors: 
 

• In October 2024 the Company entered into a lead manager mandate with Kaai Pty Ltd to raise $300,000 through loans with 
various lenders; and has entered into new loan agreements contributing $80,000 in cash during the year, with an additional 
$60,000 received in August 2025 and the balance expected over the coming months; 

• The Company has raised $55,000 in promissory note funding from various unrelated parties in August 2025, bringing total 
funding raised subsequent to year end to $115,000; 

• Following the divestment of the Business on 10 May 2024, the Company has minimal cash burn; and  
• The directors are in the process of identifying a new material asset or business to restore value to the Company, and is in 

advanced discussions regarding the proposed Re-Compliance Transaction. 
 
Accordingly, the Directors believe that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern and that it is appropriate to adopt the 
going concern basis in the preparation of the financial report. 
 
Should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern it may be required to realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities other 
than in the normal course of business and at amounts different to those stated in the financial statements. The financial statements do 
not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or to the amount and 
classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern and meet its debts as and 
when they fall due. 
 
Operating segments 
Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on the same basis as the 
internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM'). The CODM is responsible for the allocation of resources to 
operating segments and assessing their performance. 
 
Revenue recognition 
The Company recognises revenue as follows: 
  
Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods 
The Company derives revenue from the sale of meal kits and other household staple grocery items to its customers. Revenue is 
recognised when goods are transferred to customers which depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods promised and is measured 
at an amount that reflects the consideration received and to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods 
delivered. 
 
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
 
Government grants 
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant will be received and all grant conditions are met. 
Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are 
compensating. Grants relating to depreciable assets are credited to deferred income and are recognised in profit or loss over the period 
and in the proportions in which depreciation expense on those assets is recognised. 
 
Income tax 
Current income tax expense or revenue is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax 
rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused tax losses and the 
adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the applicable tax rates when the assets are expected to 
be recovered or liabilities are settled. Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.  
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
Deferred income tax is also not recognised if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable 
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
 
The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets 
recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for the carrying amount 
to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there are future 
taxable profits available to recover the asset. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on either the same 
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously. 
 
Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity. 
 
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. 
 
An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the Company's normal 
operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; 
or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily 
for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to defer 
the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less 
held at call with financial institutions, and bank overdrafts. For the statement of cash flows presentation purposes, cash and cash 
equivalents also includes bank overdrafts, which are shown in current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any allowance for expected credit losses.  
 
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 
 
The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. 
 
Derivative financial instruments 
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to 
their fair value at each reporting date. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is 
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
Investments and other financial assets 
Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the initial 
measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such assets are subsequently measured at either amortised 
cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based on both the business model within which such 
assets are held and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset unless an accounting mismatch is being avoided. 
  
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no reasonable expectation of recovering part or all of a 
financial asset, it's carrying value is written off. 
  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss. Typically, such financial assets will be either: (i) held for trading, where they are acquired for the 
purpose of selling in the short-term with an intention of making a profit, or a derivative; or (ii) designated as such upon initial recognition 
where permitted. Fair value movements are recognised in profit or loss. 
  
Impairment of financial assets 
The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either measured at amortised cost or 
fair value through other comprehensive income. The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon the Company's assessment at 
the end of each reporting period as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, 
based on reasonable and supportable information that is available, without undue cost or effort to obtain. 
  
Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected credit loss 
allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable to a default event 
that is possible within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset has become credit impaired or where it is determined that credit 
risk has increased significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit 
loss recognised is measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of anticipated cash shortfalls over the life of the 
instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 
For financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is recognised in other 
comprehensive income with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. In all other cases, the loss allowance reduces the asset's 
carrying value with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. 
 
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year and which 
are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured 
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.  
 
Borrowings 
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
  
The component of the convertible notes that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial 
position, net of transaction costs. 
  
On the issue of the convertible notes the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond and this amount is carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or 
redemption. The increase in the liability due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. The remainder of the proceeds are 
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders equity as a convertible note reserve, net of 
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in the subsequent years. The corresponding interest 
on convertible notes is expensed to profit or loss. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
Lease liabilities 
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the 
lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination 
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a 
change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty 
of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-
of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down. 
 
Finance costs 
Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred. 
  
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount 
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost.  
 
Employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  
 
Other long-term employee benefits 
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at 
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using 
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures 
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with 
terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
  
Defined contribution superannuation expense 
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Share-based payments 
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided by the Company. 
  
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares, that are provided by the Company in exchange for the 
rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of services, where the amount of cash is 
determined by reference to the share price. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined using either 
the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of 
dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free 
interest rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do not determine whether the Company receives 
the services that entitle the employees to receive payment. No account is taken of any other vesting conditions. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
The cost of equity-settled transactions are recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period. 
The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the best estimate of the number 
of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount recognised in profit or loss for the period is 
the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already recognised in previous periods. 
  
The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying either the Binomial or 
Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was granted. The cumulative 
charge to profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows: 
●  during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the expired 

portion of the vesting period. 
●  from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the reporting 

date. 
  
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to settle the 
liability. 
  
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore any awards subject to market conditions are 
considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are satisfied. 
  
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. An additional 
expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based 
compensation benefit as at the date of modification. 
  
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the Company or recipient, the failure to satisfy the condition is treated as a 
cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the Company or recipient and is not satisfied during the vesting period, any 
remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the award is forfeited. 
 
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining expense is 
recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and new award is treated as 
if they were a modification.  
 
Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair value is 
based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal market; or in the absence 
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
  
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming they act 
in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and best use. Valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are used, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
  
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 
the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and transfers between levels are 
determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
  
For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not available 
or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and reputation. Where 
there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is undertaken, which includes a 
verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where applicable, with external sources of data. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
Issued capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
  
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the 
proceeds. 
  
Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of My Foodie Box Ltd, excluding any costs of 
servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.  
  
Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after 
income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average 
number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
  
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from 
the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 
  
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position. 
  
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority. 
 
Discontinued operations 
A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a 
separate major line of business, and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business.  The results of the 
discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have not 
been early adopted by the Company for the financial reporting period ended 30 June 2025. The Company has not yet assessed the 
impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations. 

Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts in the financial statements. The Company continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, 
liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. The Company bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical 
experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. In the current financial year, there have 
been no judgements, estimates and assumptions that would have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities. 
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Note 3. Operating segment 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under one operating segment. 
 
The Company was founded as a food technology and logistics business. The principal activity of the Company in the prior year until 10 
May 2024 was the conduct of the My Foodie Box business (Business), comprising the development, preparation, and delivery of meal 
kits to Western Australian households. On 10 May 2024, the Company completed the sale of the Business to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd as 
disclosed at note 6. 
 
In the current financial year, following divestment of the Business, the Company has minimal cash burn and is in the process of 
identifying and then acquiring a new material asset or business to restore value to the Company. 
 
 
 
Note 4. Other income  
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
Interest income  37,495  6,574 
Net gain on fair value adjustment of financial liabilities (note 15)  14,240  - 
 
 

 
51,735 

 
6,574 

 
 
Note 5. Expenses 
  2025 2024 
  $ $ 
Profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing operations includes the following specific 
expenses: 

 
  

    
Employee expense:    

- Non-executive director fees  - 39,978 
Total employee expense  - 39,978 
    
Finance expense:    

- Accrued and effective interest on borrowings  76,574 45,732 
- Interest expense  6,224 - 
- Transaction costs related to promissory notes  3,493 28,086 

Total finance expense  86,291 73,818 
    
Impairment expense:    

- Receivables from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (note 10)  48,312 384,420 
- GST receivable  - 2,330 

Total impairment expense  48,312 386,750 
    
Other expense:    

- Net loss on fair value adjustment of financial liabilities (note 15)  - 66,107 
- Audit, accounting, consulting, listing, legal, share registry and related fees   127,868 150,801 
- Insurance  30,197 33,305 

Total other expense  158,065 250,213 
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Note 6. Discontinued operation 
In the prior year, the Company successfully executed a business purchase agreement with MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB) for MFB to acquire 
the My Foodie Box business (Business) from the Company (Transaction) on 3 November 2023.  MFB is an incorporated entity controlled 
by Mai Hughes, a former director of the Company and the original co-founder of the business.  The key terms of the Transaction were 
as follows: 

a) MFB will acquire the Business from the Company in consideration for the cancellation of 30,000,000 fully paid ordinary 
shares and 7,600,000 options in the Company held by Little Oneroa Pty Ltd ATF the Bryan Hughes Family Trust; 

b) The Company will be issued 40% of the issued capital of MFB; 
c) All debts of the Company will be assumed by MFB on completion of the Transaction (save for certain corporate costs of 

the Company and Transaction costs).  Large creditors have agreed to transfer their debt to MFB, whilst smaller creditors 
will be paid out in the ordinary course at MFB’s cost; 

d) All debts owing by the Company to Mai and Bryan Hughes or related parties (including Director loans and accrued Director 
fees) will be assumed by MFB; and 

e) The Company will provide vendor financing of $300,000 to MFB which must be repaid by MFB to the Company over 60 
months.  The repayments were originally scheduled to commence 3 months from the completion of the Transaction, 
however in December 2024 the Company agreed to defer repayment such that all outstanding payment amounts at March 
2025 will be paid in March 2025 and normal repayment terms will commence from that date. Repayment did not 
commence as planned in March 2025 however in May 2025 MFB agreed to commence payments of $300 per week from 
21 May 2025, with $600 received through 30 June 2025. The loan provided accrues interest at 10% per annum. The 
Company will have security over the Business until the vendor financing has been repaid. 

 
The Transaction was approved by Shareholders on 23 February 2024 and completed on 10 May 2024 following satisfaction/waiver of 
the conditions precedent.  At the time of completion, the Company announced it had agreed to provide a further loan of $100,000 to 
MFB.  This loan is in addition to the vendor financing provided under the BPA and was provided from the Company’s existing funds (and 
from the debt raising detailed in the Significant events after the balance sheet date note).  This loan carries 10% interest per annum 
and will be repayable over 80 weeks commencing 63 months from completion of the Transaction.  The Company will have security over 
the Business until this loan has been repaid. 
 
Refer note 10 for further details of the loans advanced to MFB.
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Note 6. Discontinued operation (continued) 
 
a) Financial performance and cash flow information 

 
The financial performance and cash flow information presented is for the period ended 1 July 2023 – 10 May 2024.   

 
30 June 2025 

Period ended 
10 May 2024 

 $ $ 
Financial performance   
Revenue from contracts with customers recognised at a point in time - 1,990,584 
Other revenue - 298,069 
Other income - 138,805 
Employee benefits expense - (1,183,301) 
Materials and consumables used - (905,087) 
Finance costs - (115,760) 
Advertising expense - (45,581) 
IT expense - (55,387) 
Transport expense - (36,376) 
Occupancy expense - (38,101) 
Other expenses - (290,848) 
Share based payment expense reversal - 116,994 
Impairment of intangible assets and plant & equipment - (31,947) 
Gain on sale (Refer to 6b) - 2,296,920 
Profit before income tax expense - 2,138,984 
Income tax expense - - 
Profit after income tax expense from discontinued operation - 2,138,984 
   
Cashflow information    
Net cashflow from operating activities - 213,711 
Net cashflow used in investing activities - (155,129) 
Net cashflow used in financing activities - (388,616) 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent from discontinued operation - (330,034) 
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Note 6. Discontinued operation (continued) 
 
b) Consideration 
 2025 2024 
 $ $ 
Consideration received or receivable:   

- Cash - - 
- Cancellation of 30,000,000 Shares and 7,600,000 Options (at fair value - 

note 16) - 120,000 

- Vendor finance provided prior to completion date - 350,000 
- 40% equity holding in MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (at fair value – note 12) - - 

Total disposal consideration - 470,000 
Carrying amount of net liabilities sold (Refer to 6c) - 1,826,920 
Gain on sale before income tax - 2,296,920 
Income tax expense on gain - - 
Profit on sale after income tax - 2,296,920 
   
 
c) Carrying amount of net assets/(liabilities) sold 
The carrying amount of assets and liabilities at the date of sale (10 May 2024) were: 
 2025 2024 
 $  
Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents - 89,421 
Other receivables - 55,339 
Net investment in sublease - 99,605 
Other assets - 6,798 
Total assets - 251,163 
   
   
Liabilities   
Trade and other payables - (982,998) 
Lease liabilities - (202,724) 
Borrowings  - (231,042) 
Provisions  - (178,371) 
Other liabilities  - (482,948) 
Total liabilities - (2,078,083) 
   
Net liabilities disposed - (1,826,920) 
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Note 7. Income tax   
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
(a) Income tax expense     
Current tax  -  - 
Deferred tax   -                        - 

  -  - 
     
(b) Prima facie tax payable     
The prima facie tax payable on loss before income tax is     
reconciled to the income tax expense as follows:     
Prima facie income tax payable on loss before income tax at 25% (2024: 25%)  (60,670)  348,700 
Add/(less) tax effect of;     
- Deferred tax position not recognised  59,887  (5,354,087) 
- Other non-allowable items  783  5,005,387 
- Over provision for income tax in prior year    - 
- Non-assessable government grants received    - 
Income tax expense  -  - 
     
(c) Current tax liability     
Current tax relates to the following:     
Current tax liabilities / (assets)  -  - 
  -  - 
     
(d) Deferred tax     
Deferred tax relates to the following:     
Deferred tax assets balance comprises:     

Receivables  102,100  - 
Accruals  21,034  12,715 
Business related costs  16,144  23,603 
Offset against deferred tax assets/ deferred tax assets not recognised  (196,252)  (36,318) 
Tax losses  56,974  - 

  -  - 
Deferred tax liabilities balance comprises:     
     Prepayments  (2,346)  6,632 
     Promissory Notes  -  1,251 
    Offset against deferred tax assets  2,346  (7,883) 
     
Net deferred tax  -  - 
  
(e) Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:     
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets  (55,600)  104,622 
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities  (4,286)  (232,796) 
Deferred tax assets not recognised  59,887  128,174 
  -  - 
     
(f) Deferred tax assets not brought to account     
Temporary differences  136,932  28,435 
Operating tax losses  56,974  - 
  193,906  28,435 
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Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents     
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
Cash at bank  6,434  - 
Bank overdraft  -  (4,919) 
  6,434  (4,919) 
     
Reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     
The above figures are reconciled to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as 
shown in the statement of cash flows as follows: 

 
 
 

 
     
Balances as above  6,434  (4,919) 
Balance as per statement of cash flows  6,434  (4,919) 

 
 
  

Note 8. Loss per share 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
a) Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents per share)     

- From continuing operations (cents per share)  (0.17)  (0.46) 
- From discontinued operations (cents per share)  -  1.32 

Total basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (cents per share)  (0.17)  0.86 
     
     
b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit used in calculating (loss)/earnings per share     
Profit/(loss) used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:     

- From continuing operations   (240,933)  (744,185) 
- From discontinued operations (note 6)  -  2,138,984 

  (240,933)  1,394,799 
     
     
c) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used 

in calculation of basic and diluted loss per share 
 

 
 

 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in 
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share 

 
139,163,335 

 
161,946,742 

 

 
 

Note 10. Other receivables 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
Current     
Receivable from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd  15,470  4,125 
GST input credits  2,401  2,330 
Provision for impairment  (17,871)  (6,455) 
  -  - 
     
Non-current     
Receivable from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd  417,190  380,295 
Provision for impairment  (417,190)  (380,295) 
  -  - 
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Note 10. Other receivables (continued) 
 
At 30 June 2025 the Company has a total receivable of $432,660 from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd comprised as follows: 
 
$300K vendor finance facility 
Pursuant to the terms of the Transaction described at note 6, the Company has provided vendor financing of $300,000 to MFB, which 
must be repaid by MFB to the Company over 60 months.  The repayments were originally scheduled to commence 3 months from the 
completion of the Transaction, however in December 2024 the Company agreed to defer repayment such that all outstanding payment 
amounts at March 2025 will be paid in March 2025 and normal repayment terms will commence from that date.  Repayment did not 
commence as planned in March 2025, however in May 2025 MFB agreed to commence payments of $300 per week from 21 May 2025, 
with $600 received through 30 June 2025. The loan provided accrues interest at 10% per annum. The Company has security over the 
Business until the vendor financing has been repaid.  The balance of this facility at 30 June 2025 is $333,669 (30 June 2024: $304,274) 
inclusive of accrued interest. 
 
$100K loan facility 
In addition to the vendor finance facility provided under the BPA, the Company has agreed to provide a further loan of $100,000 to MFB.  
The loan carries 10% interest per annum and will be repayable over 20 months commencing 63 months from completion of the 
Transaction.  The Company will have security over the Business until this loan has been repaid.  At 30 June 2025 the Company has 
provided $75,000 of this amount to MFB with $25,000 available for draw down.  The balance of this facility at 30 June 2025 is $83,521 
(30 June 2024: $76,021) inclusive of accrued interest. 
 
MFB costs paid post Transaction 
MFB costs of $15,470 were paid or payable by the Company on behalf of MFB following Transaction completion.  The $15,470 is non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. 
 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
As per note 6 MFB has assumed material net liabilities upon purchase of the My Foodie Box Business from the Company.  The ability of 
MFB to repay the Company is dependent on the successful operations of the Business and/or the raising of additional capital.  Given 
the material liability position of MFB and the limited amount of repayments received by the Company since the loan’s commencement 
the Company recorded an impairment provision for the full amount receivable from MFB since 30 June 2024. Interest income accrued 
on the loan during the 2025 financial year has been fully impaired at 30 June 2025. The Company has also impaired its GST receivable 
balance at both 30 June 2025 and 2024 as the receipt of GST refunds from the ATO is subject to MFB’s settlement of historic ATO debts.   
 
 
Note 11. Other Assets 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
CURRENT     
Prepayments  9,384  26,529 
  9,384  26,529 
  
Note 12. Investment in associate and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 
 
As consideration for the disposal of the Group’s My Foodie Box Business to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB) on 10 May 2024, the Company was 
issued a 40% equity holding in MFB.  The 40% equity holding is accounted for as an investment in associate at 30 June 2024. 
 
Following the completion of capital raises by MFB in November and December 2024 the Company’s interest was diluted to 9.09% at 
30 June 2025, resulting in the 9.09% investment in MFB being accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss at 
30 June 2025. 
 
MFB has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Company.  The proportion of ownership 
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. 
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Note 12. Investment in associate and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
2025 
 

Name of entity Place of 
business and 
country of 
incorporation 

% of 
ownership 

interest 

Nature of relationship Measurement 
method 

Quoted 
fair 

value 

Carrying amount 

  2025   2025 2025 

  %   $ $ 

MFB (WA) Pty Ltd Australia 9.09 Minority shareholder FVPL (i) - 
 
2024 
 

Name of entity Place of 
business and 
country of 
incorporation 

% of 
ownership 

interest 

Nature of 
relationship 

Measurement 
method 

Quoted fair 
value 

Carrying amount 

  2024   2024 2024 

  %   $ $ 

MFB (WA) Pty Ltd Australia 40 Associate Equity method (i) - 
 
(i) MFB (WA) Pty Ltd is a private entity with no quoted price available.  The Company has assessed the fair value of the investment as 

nil at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 based on the net liability position and operational results of MFB from disposal date onwards. 

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of MFB 
Refer to note 21 for further information on commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of MFB. 
 
Summarised financial information of associate 
 
The tables below provide the summarised financial information of MFB.  The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in 
the financial statements of MFB and the Company’s share of those amounts.  The amounts have been amended to reflect adjustments 
made by the Company when using the equity method, including modifications for differences in accounting policies. 
 
As the investment has transitioned from an associate to a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss at 30 June 2025 these 
disclosures are not applicable for the 2025 financial year. 
    2024 
    $ 
Summarised statement of financial position of MFB     
Total current assets    47,748 
Total non-current assets    96,125 
Total current liabilities    (1,123,436) 
Total non-current liabilities    (1,156,339) 
Net liabilities    (2,135,902) 
     
Company’s share in %    40% 
Company’s share of net liabilities in $    (854,361) 
Carrying amount    - 
 
Due to the net liability position of MFB no value has been recognised for the investment at 30 June 2024. 
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Note 12. Investment in associate and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
    2024 
    $ 
Summarised statement of comprehensive income      
Loss from continuing operations    300,626 
Loss for the period    300,626 
Other comprehensive income    - 
Total comprehensive loss for the period    300,626 
 
 
Company’s share in %    40% - 
Company’s share of total comprehensive loss in $    120,250 - 
Share of other comprehensive income of the associate recognised in profit or loss    - - 
 
As the fair value of the investment in associate is nil at inception, no share of associate loss is recognised by the Company at 30 June 
2024 or for the period that the investment was an associate in the 2025 financial year. 
 
Dividends 
There were no dividends received from MFB during or since the end of the year (2024: nil). 
 
 
Note 13. Trade and other payables 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
CURRENT     
Trade creditors  140,697  131,399 
Accrued expenses  89,738  50,859 
  230,435  182,258 
  
Note 14.  Borrowings 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
CURRENT     
Unsecured liabilities     
Loans from unrelated parties  54,255  22,370 
Insurance premium funding   12,806  34,673 
Current total  67,061  57,043 
     
NON-CURRENT     
Unsecured liabilities     
Loans from unrelated parties  192,570  86,809 
Loan from related party  27,390  - 
     
Secured liabilities     
Loans from unrelated parties  517,403  462,860 
Non-current total  737,363  549,669 
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Note 14.  Borrowings (continued) 
 
Movements in the Company’s borrowings during the year are as follows:  
 2025  

$ 
MOVEMENT  
Opening balance 606,712 
Cash repayments (34,673) 
Loan proceeds received 143,005 
Insurance premium funding, net 12,806 
Accrued interest  65,774 
Effective interest 10,800 
Closing balance 804,424 
 
Unrelated and related party loans 
In October and November 2023 the Company raised $560,650 under loan agreements with multiple unrelated parties.    
 
An additional $143,005 was raised during the 2025 financial year, with $118,005 from unrelated parties and $25,000 from related party 
director Guy Perkins.  Following the additional amounts drawn in during the 2025 financial year the total face value of loans at 30 June 
2025 is $703,655. 
 
$455,000 is secured over all current and future assets of the Business, the balance of $248,655 is unsecured.  As there are multiple 
secured lenders the Company has entered into a security trust deed and a general security deed under which security has been granted 
to a third party trustee to hold the security on behalf of the secured lenders. 
 
Loans with a face value of $48,150 are due and payable on demand. 
 
Loans with a face value of $655,505 are repayable at the earliest of: 

- 3 years from drawdown date as follows: 
o $540,000 - various dates across the months of October and November 2026; 
o $25,000 – 16 July 2027;  
o $80,000 – various dates across November 2027; and 
o $10,505 – 25 June 2028. 

- The date the Company is reinstated to trading on ASX following completion of a transaction under any RTO Agreement. 
 

- In addition, as part consideration for providing the Loans, subject to shareholder approval, the Company will issue the lenders 
1 option for every 2 cents loaned, each option with an exercise price equal to a 50% premium to the capital raising to be 
undertaken in connection with the Re-Compliance Transaction expiring 3 years from issue, and shall be issued at the same 
time as the issue of securities under the RTO Transaction. As at 30 June 2025, no options have been approved by shareholders.   

The loans accrue interest at a rate of 10% per annum, payable in cash at maturity.   
 
The face value of the loans of $703,655 is presented in the statement of financial position inclusive of accrued interest of $102,551 (30 
June 2024: face value of $560,650 inclusive of accrued interest of $36,777). 
 
The total loans balance of $804,424 is stated net of transaction costs of $14,588 (30 June 2024: total loans balance of $572,039 is stated 
net of transaction costs of $25,388). 
 
Insurance premium funding 
At 30 June 2025 the Company has a short term, unsecured working capital facility of $12,806 with an interest rate of 4.61% (30 June 
2024: short term, unsecured working capital facility of $34,673 with an interest rate of 6.75%).  
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Note 16. Equity - issued capital 
  
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
  Shares  Shares  $  $ 
         
Fully paid ordinary shares  139,163,335  139,163,335  5,950,304  5,950,304 
  
Movements in ordinary share capital  

Details 
 

Date 
 

Shares 
 Issue price  

$ 
 

$ 
Balance  1 July 2023  68,794,583    5,971,841 
Promissory note conversion and interest settlement (i)  12 July 2023  100,368,752  0.001  98,463 
Cancellation of shares as consideration for disposal of 
Business (note 6) 

 
10 May 2024 

  
(30,000,000) 

  
0.004 

  
(120,000) 

Balance  30 June 2024  139,163,335    5,950,304 
Movement during the year    -    - 
Balance  30 June 2025  139,163,335    5,950,304 
         

 

(i) In July 2023 the Company settled promissory notes with a total principal amount of $455,000 through the issue of 96,074,816 shares.  
Accrued interest of $20,336 was settled through the issue of 4,293,936 shares. 
 

Note 15. Other current liabilities 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
Promissory notes  9,049  19,796 
  9,049  19,796 
  
Promissory notes 
At 30 June 2025 the Company has on issue 45,000 promissory notes with a principal amount of $45,000 and an accounting value of 
$9,049 (30 June 2024: 45,000 promissory notes with a principal amount of $45,000 and an accounting value of $19,796). 
 
Each note has a $1.00 face value with an interest rate of 10% per annum.  The notes are unsecured and matured in February 2025, 24 
months from the date of issue. 
 
The promissory notes are convertible to shares in the Company at a conversion price which is the lower of $0.025 and 90% of the 5 
trading day VWAP of shares immediately prior to the Conversion Date, calculated only using trading days on which trading of Shares 
occurs, subject to a minimum conversion price of $0.001.  On conversion note holders are also entitled to one free attaching option for 
each share issued. 
 
Due to the conversion terms, the promissory notes are a compound financial instrument with an embedded derivative valued using the 
Black Scholes option pricing model.  The debt liability component is amortised at each reporting date using the effective interest 
method.  The derivative liability component is revalued at each reporting date over the life of the instrument.  
 
In February 2025, as the promissory notes had matured, the embedded derivatives has nil value. 
 
The fair value adjustment recognised 30 June 2025 was a gain of $14,240 (30 June 2024: loss of $66,107). 
 
Included in the 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 balances are promissory notes with a principal amount of $25,000 owed to director Guy 
Perkins. 
 
From maturity date through to August 2025 the notes remain outstanding. 
  
Subsequent to year end, in August 2025, the Company entered into variation agreements with noteholders to extend the maturity date 
of the notes to 31 January 2026. 
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Note 16. Equity - issued capital (continued) 
 
Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the Company in proportion to the 
number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the Company does not have a 
limited amount of authorised capital. On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote 
and upon a poll each share shall have one vote. 
  
Cancellation of shares 
Refer to note 6 regarding the cancellation of shares. 
 
Capital risk management 
The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can provide returns 
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
  
Capital is regarded as total equity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 
  
The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 30 June 2024 Financial Report.  
 
Note 17. Equity - reserves 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
a) Reserve     
Share based payment reserve  579,820  708,500 
  579,820  708,500 
  
b) Movement in Share Based Payment Reserve  

 Date No. Total 
$ 

Opening balance at 1 July 2023  39,499,980 825,494 
Free attaching options on promissory note conversion shares 
and promissory note interest settlement shares 

12 July 2023 100,368,752 - 

Performance management options expense (note 23) 31 December 2023 - 29,280 
Reversal of performance management options expense (note 
23) 

31 December 2023 - (2,754) 

Director options expense (note 23) 31 December 2023 - 33,728 
Reversal of director options expense (note 23) 31 December 2023 - (177,248) 
Cancellation of director options as consideration for disposal 
of Business (note 6) 

10 May 2024 (7,600,000) - 

Closing balance at 30 June 2024  132,268,732 708,500 
Director option expiry 7 January 2025 (1,000,000) (99,400) 
Performance management option expiry 7 January 2025 (300,000) (29,280) 
Closing balance at 30 June 2025  130,968,732 579,820 
 
c) Movement in Convertible Note Reserve  

 Date  Total 
$ 

Opening balance 1 July 2023   88,897 
Adjustment to equity component at inception  31 December 2023  27,716 
Transferred to accumulated losses after sale of business 10 May 2024  (116,613) 
Closing balance at 30 June 2024   - 
Movement during the year   - 
Closing balance at 30 June 2025   - 
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Note 18. Dividends 
 
There are no dividend proposed or paid for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 (2024: Nil). 
 
Note 19. Financial instruments 
  
Financial risk management objectives 
The Company is exposed to the following financial risks in respect to the financial instruments that it held at the end of the reporting 
period: 
(a) Interest rate risk 
(b) Credit risk 
(c) Liquidity risk 
 
The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for identifying and managing operational and financial risks. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to its borrowings. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages it interest rate risk 
through the use of fixed rate borrowings. Undertaking arrangements on fixed interest terms ensures the Company is not exposed to 
any unnecessary risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in prevailing market rates. 
 
The following table outlines that Company's exposure to interest rate risk in relation to future cashflows and the effective weighted 
average interest rates on classes of financial assets and financial liabilities: 
 
Financial Instruments Interest Bearing Weighted average interest rate  
2025 $   
Loans from unrelated parties 764,228 10% Fixed 
Loan from related party 27,390 10% Fixed 
Insurance premium funding 12,806 4.61% Fixed 
Promissory notes 9,049 10% Fixed 
 813,473   
    
2024    
Loans from unrelated parties 572,039 10% Fixed 
Insurance premium funding 34,673 6.75% Fixed 
Promissory notes 19,796 10% Fixed 
 626,508   
    
 
No other financial assets or financial liabilities are expected to be exposed to interest rate risk. 
 
Sensitivity 
There is no impact on the loss after tax as the Company's borrowings are obtained on fixed interest terms. 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an 
obligation. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance sheet date of recognised 
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets, net of any allowance for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in statement 
of financial position and notes to financial statements. 
 
The Company does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties under financial 
instruments entered into by the Company. 
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Note 19. Financial instruments (continued) 
 
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
Credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is managed by holding all cash deposits with major Australian banks with a minimum credit 
rating of AA assigned by reputable credit rating agencies. 
 
(ii) Other receivables 
At 30 June 2025, the Company has total receivables of $432,660 (30 June 2024: $384,420) from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB) (note 10).  As 
per note 6 MFB has assumed material net liabilities upon purchase of the My Foodie Box Business from the Company.  The ability of 
MFB to repay the Company is dependent on the successful operations of the Business and/or the raising of additional capital.  Given 
the material liability position of MFB and the limited amount of repayments received by the Company since the loan’s commencement, 
the Company has recorded an impairment provision for the full amount receivable from MFB at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024. The 
Company has also impaired its GST receivable balance as the receipt of GST refunds from the ATO is subject to MFB’s settlement of 
historic ATO debts. 
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. 
 
The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of loans and other 
available lines of credits. The Company manages its liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows from operating and financing 
activities. 
 
The following table outlines the Company’s remaining contractual maturities for non-derivative financial instruments. The amounts 
presented in the table are the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial liabilities, allocated to time bands based on the 
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.  
 

 

 

 

 

< 6 months 

 

6-12 months 

 

1-5 years 

 Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

 
Carrying 
Amount 

2025    $  $  $  $  $ 
Trade and other payables    230,435  -  -  230,435  230,435 
Borrowings    62,276  1,412  852,157  916,294  804,424 
Promissory notes    55,770  -  -  55,770  9,049 
    348,931  1,412  852,517  1,146,729  1,043,907 
  
 
 

 

 

 

 

< 6 months 

 

6-12 months 

 

1-5 years 

 Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

 
Carrying 
Amount 

2024    $  $  $  $  $ 
Bank overdraft    4,919  -  -  4,919  4,919 
Trade and other payables    182,258  -  -  182,258  182,258 
Borrowings    66,294  -  702,000  768,294  606,712 
Promissory notes    -  45,000  -  45,000  19,796 
    253,471  45,000  702,000  1,004,471  813,685 
             
 The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than contractually disclosed above. 
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Note 20. Remuneration of auditors 
  
During the financial year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by RSM Australia Partners, the auditor of the 
Company and its network firms: 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
Audit and review of financial statements   33,100  50,500 
  33,100  50,500 

 

Note 21. Commitments, Contingent Assets & liabilities 
 
The Company transferred net liabilities of $1,826,920 to MFB (WA) Ptd Ltd on completion of the Transaction described at note 6.  As 
there have been no third party debt assignments executed with some of the liability holders, the Company may be required to settle 
these liabilities should MFB fail to do so.  In the event the Company is required to settle any liability balances transferred to MFB in 
accordance with the Business Purchase Agreement (BPA) the BPA provides a right of recovery from MFB. 
 
There are no other contingent liabilities or assets as at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024. 
 
As part of the Transaction described at note 6 the Company has committed to providing a total of $400,000 in funding to MFB (WA) Ptd 
Ltd in the form of loans receivable.  At 30 June 2024, 30 June 2025 and the date of this report the Company has disbursed $375,000 
with the remaining $25,000 yet to be provided. 
 
There are no other commitments as at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024. 
 
Note 22. Related party transactions 
 
a) Discontinued operation 
See note 6 for details of the Company’s disposal of the My Foodie Box business (Business) to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB) on 10 May 
2024.  MFB is a related party through director Bryan Hughes. 
 
There are no discontinued operations that are related party transactions in the financial year ended 30 June 2025. 
 
b) Carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd  
On completion of the disposal of the My Foodie Box business (Business) to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd on 10 May 2024, the following balances 
were transferred from My Foodie Box Ltd to MFB WA Pty Ltd and reflected at note 6 as follows: 
 

- Accrued director fees of $346,002 to Mai Hughes, $118,405 to Bryan Hughes and $59,103 to Guy Perkins are included within 
Trade and other payables of $982,997;  

- Convertible loans with an accounting value of $467,948 (face value of $500,000) owed to Bryan Hughes and Guy Perkins or 
their related parties are included within other liabilities of $482,948, see note 6 for further details; 

- Borrowings of $174,459 owed to a related entity of Bryan Hughes is included within Borrowings of $231,042.  The amount 
is non-interest bearing and has no set repayment date;  

- Borrowings of $20,000 plus accrued interest of $2,023 owed to a related party of Bryan Hughes is included within Borrowings 
of $231,042.  The $20,000 bears interest at 8% per annum capitalised monthly and matures on 24 February 2025; and 

- Other receivables from Mai & Bryan Hughes of $19,867 are included within Other receivables of $52,187. 
 
There were no assets or liabilities transferred to MFB in the financial year ended 30 June 2025. 
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Note 22. Related party transactions (continued) 
 
c) Investment in MFB (WA) Pty Ltd 
At 30 June 2024 the Company held 40% of the issued capital of to MFB (WA) Pty Ltd (MFB). Following the completion of capital raises 
by MFB in November and December 2024 the Company’s interest was diluted to 9.09% at 30 June 2025.  
 
Refer note 12 for details. 
 
d) Vendor finance and other receivables from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd 
Refer note 10 for details of the vendor finance facility and other receivables from MFB (WA) Pty Ltd at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 
2024, including details of the provision for impairment recorded in respect of these amounts. 
 
During the 2025 financial year the Company advanced MFB a net amount of $2,544 (2024: $28,202). 
 
The Company recognised interest income on loans receivable from MFB of $37,495 at 30 June 2025 (2024: $6,574). 
 
The Company recognised an impairment loss of $48,312 in respect of MFB at 30 June 2025 (30 June 2024: $386,749). 
 
In December 2024, to facilitate a private raising being undertaken by , MBX agreed to subordinate its security on the $400K MFB debt 
to the lenders under the current MFB debt raising (up to a maximum of $96,000) and to defer repayment of the Vendor Financing such 
that all outstanding repayment amounts as at March 2025 will be paid in March 2025 and normal repayment terms will commence 
from that date.  In consideration, subject to shareholder approval, MFB will grant the Company a 12 month option to convert part of 
its debt into MFB shares. Repayment did not commence as planned in March however in May 2025 MFB agreed to commence payments 
of $300 payment per week from 21 May 2025, with $600 received as at 30 June 2025 and annual report sign off. 
 
e) Advances to related parties and payment of related party loans 
There were no advances to related parties and/or payment of related party loans during the year ended 30 June 2025. 
 
During the 30 June 2024 year a total of $19,867 was advanced to Mai & Bryan Hughes.  The receivable balance was transferred to 
MFB as noted above. 
 
At 30 June 2023 the Company owed a related party of Bryan Hughes $227,594.  Of this amount $53,135 was repaid in cash during the 
year ended 30 June 2024.  The balance of $174,459 was transferred to MFB as noted above. 
 
f) Borrowings 
Guy Perkins provided loan funding to the Company of $25,000 during the 2025 financial year.  The $25,000 is unsecured, repayable at 
the earliest of the date the Company is reinstated to trading on ASX following completion of a transaction under any RTO Agreement 
or 16 July 2027, and accrues interest at 10% per annum.  Accrued interest of $2,390 is recorded at 30 June 2025. See note 14 for further 
details.  
 
There were no related party borrowings at 30 June 2024. 
 
g) Other liabilities – promissory notes 
See note 15 for details of promissory notes held with Directors at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

h) Key Management Personnel disclosures 
Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to Directors and other member of Key Management Personnel of the Company is set out below: 
  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
Short-term employee benefits  -  293,462 
Post-employment benefits  -  32,281 
Share-based payments  -  (60,730) 
  -  265,013 
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Note 23. Share-based payments 
 
a) Share based payments arrangements 
There were no share based payments granted during the year ended 30 June 2025.   
 
There were no share based payment options granted in prior reporting periods that impact share based payment expense for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2025.   
 
Details of share based payment options that impact the financial year ended 30 June 2024 are set out below. 
 
b) Performance Management Options  
At 30 June 2023 the Company had on issue 900,000 Performance Management Options, vesting subject to the achievement of certain 
service and Business performance conditions (300,000 options each of Classes A, B & C). 
 
The 300,000 Class A options are vested and exercisable at 30 June 2024 following the achievement of the Class A performance condition 
of 4,000 active subscribers within 12 months from IPO. The Company recorded a pro-rata expense of $29,280 in relation to these options 
at 30 June 2024.  The Class A options expired unexercised on 7 January 2025. 
 
As the 300,000 Class B & 300,000 Class C options have performance conditions linked to the achievement of certain numbers of active 
subscribers and the conditions have not been met by the Transaction date of 10 May 2024 as disclosed at note 6, these options have not 
vested and are not expected to vest at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024. The previously recognised expense in relation to these options 
totalling $2,754 has been reversed at 30 June 2024. 
 
The Class B and C Performance Management Options on issue at 30 June 2025 have the following exercise prices and expiry dates: 
 

• Class B – exercisable at $0.25, on or before 7 January 2026; and 
• Class C – exercisable at $0.30, on or before 7 January 2027. 

 
c) Directors’ Options  
At 30 June 2023 the Company had on issue 10,600,000 Director Options, vesting subject to the achievement of certain service and 
Business performance conditions (3,800,000 Class A options, 3,800,000 Class B options, 1,000,000 Class C options and 2,000,000 Class D 
options).   
 
As the 3,800,000 Class A options have vesting conditions linked to the achievement of certain audited revenue targets which have not 
been met by the Transaction date of 10 May 2024 disclosed at note 6, these options have not vested and are not expected to vest at 30 
June 2024. All previously recognised expense in relation to these options totaling $39,752 was reversed at 31 December 2023.   The 
options were cancelled on 10 May 2024 as part of the Transaction disclosed at note 6.   
 
As the 3,800,000 Class B options have vesting conditions linked to the achievement of certain audited revenue targets which have not 
been met by the Transaction date of 10 May 2024 disclosed at note 6, these options have not vested and are not expected to vest at 30 
June 2024. All previously recognised expense in relation to these options totaling $26,328 was reversed at 31 December 2023.   
The options were cancelled on 10 May 2024 as part of the Transaction disclosed at note 6.   
 
The 1,000,000 Class C options are vested and exercisable at 30 June 2024 upon the achievement of a 12 month service condition being 
met.  The Company has recorded a pro-rata expense of $33,728 in relation to these options at 30 June 2024.   The Class C options expired 
unexercised on 7 January 2025. 
 
At 1 July 2022 there were an additional 1,000,000 Class C options on issue that lapsed in December 2022 upon resignation of the director 
who held them.  The Company has recorded a pro-rata expense reversal of $54,411 in relation to these options at 30 June 2024. 
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Note 23: Share based payments (continued) 
As the 2,000,000 Class D options have vesting conditions linked to the achievement of certain audited revenue targets which have not 
been met by the Transaction date of 10 May 2024 disclosed at note 6, these options have not vested and are not expected to vest at 30 
June 2025 and 30 June 2024. All previously recognised expense in relation to these options totaling $56,757 has been reversed at 30 
June 2024.  
 
The 2,000,000 Class D options are the only Directors’ Options on issue at 30 June 2025.  The 2,000,000 Class D options are exercisable at 
$0.30 on or before 7 January 2027. 
 
d) Share based payments in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
The Company has recorded no share based payments expense at 30 June 2025. 
 
Share based payments recorded in the Company’s statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income at 30 June 2024 are 
presented within “Loss after tax from discontinued operation.” 
 
Share based payments in net profit or loss are as follows: 
 2025 2024 
 $ $ 

Performance management options expense - 29,280 
Performance management options expense reversed - (2,754) 
Director options expense - 33,728 
Director options expense reversed - (177,248) 
Gain on reversal of share based payments expense - (116,994) 

 
Note 24. Cashflow information 
 
 Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities  2025  2024 
  $  $ 
     
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense  (240,933)  1,394,799 
     
Adjustments for non-cash items in profit or loss:     
Net (gain)/loss on fair value adjustment of financial asset  (14,240)  98,463 
Interest income  (37,495)  - 
Finance costs  86,291  84,228 
Impairment expense   48,312  418,697 
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations  -  (2,296,920) 
Net investment in sublease at inception  -  (131,950) 
Gain on reversal of share based payments expense  -  (116,994) 
     
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
Increase in trade and other receivables  -  (22,940) 
Decrease in other assets  17,145  9,073 
Decrease in inventories  -  62,848 
Decrease in net investment in sublease  -  32,345 
Increase in trade and other payables  46,485  526,201 
Increase in provisions  -  85,655 
Decrease in contract liabilities  -  (49,276) 
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities  (94,435)  94,229 

 

 
a) Non-cash investing and financing activities 

There were no material non-cash investing and financing activities during the year (2024: nil). 
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Note 25. Events after the reporting period 
As noted above, the Company is in advanced discussions regarding a Re-Compliance Transaction which would facilitate the reinstatement 
of the Company to Official Quotation on ASX.  The Company notes that at this stage no formal agreements have been entered into and 
there is no guarantee the transaction will proceed. 
 
In August 2025 the maturity date of the Company’s 45,000, $1 face value promissory notes was extended to 31 January 2026. See note 
14 for further details. 
 
In August 2025 an additional $60,000 has been drawn under various loan agreements from unrelated parties pursuant to the October 
2024 lead manager mandate with Kaai Pty Ltd to raise $300,000 through loans with various lenders (October Loans).  The $60,000 is 
unsecured and bears interest at 10% per annum, repayable in cash on the earlier of: (a) 3 years from drawdown; and (b) the date of 
completion of a Re-Compliance Transaction. As part consideration for providing the Loans, subject to shareholder approval, the 
Company will issue the lenders 1 option for every 2 cents loaned, each option with an exercise price equal to a 50% premium to the 
capital raising to be undertaken in connection with the Re-Compliance Transaction expiring 3 years from issue. 
 
The Company is currently undertaking a promissory note raising to raise funds for costs of the Re-Compliance Transaction and for working 
capital.  In August 2025, $55,000 was raised from unrelated parties.  Subject to shareholder approval, these promissory notes will 
automatically convert to equity at 2 cents per share, with lenders to also receive 1 attaching option for each share issued, each with an 
exercise price of 3c expiring 3 years from issue. 
 
There are no other matters or circumstance that have arisen since 30 June 2025 that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the Company’s operations, the results of those operations, or the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years. 
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In the Directors’ opinion:  
1. The financial statements and notes set out on pages 14 to 43 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

 a) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements, 

b) complying with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements, 

 c) giving a true and fair view, the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2025 and of its performance for the year ended 
on that date; and 

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable.  

The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.  

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.  

 

Signed for and on behalf of the Directors by: 

 
 
 
  
Francis De Souza 
Non-Executive Chairman 
  
 
22 August 2025 
Perth 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of MY FOODIE BOX LIMITED 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial report of My Foodie Box Limited (the Company) which comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2025, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including material accounting policy information, and the directors' declaration. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including:  
 
(i) Giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2025 and of its financial 

performance for the year then ended; and 
 
(ii) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to 
the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's 
report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 
 
We draw attention to Note 1, which indicates that the Company incurred a net loss after tax of $240,933 from 
continuing operations for the year ended 30 June 2025. As at that date, the Company had net current liabilities 
and net liabilities of $290,727 and $1,028,089 respectively. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth 
in Note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed this matter 

Borrowings 
Refer to Note 14 in the financial statements 

As at 30 June 2025, the Company recorded 
borrowings of $804,424 on the statement of financial 
position. 
 
We determine this to be a key audit matter due it being 
the most significant balance in the statement of 
financial position. In addition, the borrowings comprise 
of multiple lenders with terms and conditions. 
 
Further to that, management is required to determine 
the classification of borrowings between current and 
non-current in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards.  

Our audit procedures included:  
 

• Reviewing loan agreements to determine the  
principal loan amount, transaction costs, interest 
rates and maturity dates; 

• Sighting to bank statements for the borrowings 
drawdown during the year; 

• Recalculating interest accrued at reporting date;  

• Obtaining confirmation of balances with lenders to 
ensure completeness of borrowings at reporting 
date;  

• Reviewing the classification of borrowings 
between current and non-current on the statement 
of financial position in accordance with its 
repayment terms; and 

• Assessing the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

 
 Other Information  
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Company's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2025 but does not include the financial report and the 
auditor's report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar2_2020.pdf. This 
description forms part of our auditor's report.  
 
REPORT ON THE REMUNERATION REPORT 
 
Opinion on the Remuneration Report 
 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2025.  
 
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of My Foodie Box Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2025, complies 
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  
 
Responsibilities 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report 
in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  
 
 
 

 
 
RSM AUSTRALIA  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Perth, WA AIK KONG TING 
Dated:  22 August 2025 Partner 
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